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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Parent") and its subsidiaries (the Parent and its subsidiaries
together referred to as "the Group"), comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated Ind AS financial statements").

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the
Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Parent,
as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
o w __of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
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7. (ﬁjl qe\audn to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are
L/ ‘free from material misstatement.
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S K\/ '“An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
"0\ _in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
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judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Parent's preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Parent's Board of Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries referred to below in the Other Matters paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2018, and their consolidated loss,
consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 5 subsidiaries and 1 Limited Liability Partnership
Firm (as mentioned below), whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 44,812.37 lacs
as at March 31, 2018, total revenues of Rs. 4,695.69 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.
90.07 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm included in consolidated Ind AS financial
statements are as below:

A. Subsidiaries-

1. Celsia Hotels Private Limited

2. Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited
3. Iora Hotels Private Limited

4. Ophrys Hotels Private Limited

5. Bandhav Resorts (P) Limited

B. Limited Liability Partnership firm —

1. Mezereon Hotels LI.P
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Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries,
referred in the Other Matters paragraph above we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(¢)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on
March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group companies
is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”, which
is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies. Our report expresses
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of those companies, for the reasons stated therein.

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group.

ii. ~ The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
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iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred o the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No 117366W / W-lOOOlS)
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Date: May 25, 2018
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
i‘lﬁr\reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
— ,\Iq’":_x_‘.{{ne:TWnts for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
\ieompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

[ Chamm? | (lh] pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
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transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inberent Limltations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the criteria for internal
financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)
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(Eseaee )E) Viléy Agarwa

Cr xS (Partner)

NOyRZAT) (Membership No. 094468)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2018



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Cenzoliduted Balance Sheet na at March 31, 2018

ASSETS

Nos-carvent aaseis
(8) Property, plant srid squipment
(b) Capilal work-in-progress
(c) Intangible
(e} Intangibl under dovelop
(d) Financial aasety

{i) Othor financial ewsets
() Non-curront tax essets (net)
(£) Other non-current exsels

Carrent nasels
(o) Inventoriea
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade reccivables
(il) Cagh snd Cash equivalents
(iii) Investmomts
(iv) Other finencia! sassts
(o) Other current assets

Total Avets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equlty

(a) Share capital

(b) Other Bquity

Eqaity stiributnble to equity holders of the pareni
() Noo-controliing interests

Total Equity

LinbRities

Noo-carrest kabliitiex

(a) Finanocial kisbiliiies
(i) Borrowings

(i) Otheer Rnanelal Usbilities

(b) Provisions

(o) Deferved tax lisbilitiea (net)

(d) Other nom-current Liabilities

Carrent linbEities
(s) Financlal finbilities
() Trade
() Other flnencial liabilities
(b) Other eurrent lisbilities
{c) Provizions

Total Liabliities
Total Equity and Lisbilities

The scoompanying notes aro an integral part of iha finenwial staterments
As pez our regort of even date
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¥leur Hotel Privnte Limlited
Conolids ted xintement of Profit snd Lous for the yenr ended March 31, 2018

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
D o Note No. s i bakhs R in fakhs
Revenue from opersfions 20 19,885.60 14,384.41
Other Tncome 21 ) 3986 452,03
Total Tocome (T) 1990547 jag6dd
Expensex
Coat of food and beversges consumed n 2,026.41 1,396 34
Employee benefits expense 23 3460944 259527
Other expeniscy 24 9,194.41 6,587,85
Total (IT) 14.830.28 10.579.46
Earniags bofore interest, tax, deprectation snd amortisstion 507522 4,256.99
(EBITDA) (1)
Depresintion and smorttzation exp 25 245297 2,001.20
Financc costs 26 2,928.7 1,941.06
Finance income 27 {104.95) {110 35)
(Loss) /Profit before tax (201.87) 42507
Tax expense: 23
(1) Current tax (MAT) €5 45,61
(2) Adjustruest of tax relating to earlier periads 016 31.92)
{3) Deferred ax (5584 201,55
(206.16) 2TH
Net profit for the year 458 20783
Olher comprehensive Income / (lom)
Remeasurenuontd of defined benefit plans 212) (1.1
Tacorne tax relating to items that will not be reclussifled to profit or logs 0839 -
.73 (113
Tatal Comprebensive Income far the year 2488 206.70
Profit for the year 488 207.93
Attsibotable ro:
Equity holders of the perent 4.88 207.87
Non-cowtrolling interests - +
Total comprehensive Incame for the year 285 206,70
Attributable 10:
Bquity holders of the pareht 285 206.70
Non-controlling interesty - .
Eamings per equity sbare
(1) Basic 28 a.01 a3s
(2) Diluted 8 0.0 03s
The accompanylng notes are an integral pert of the financial statements. o4
As per our repart of even date
For Deloiite Hoaldus & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Fleur Wotels Privase Limited
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2018
(Rs in lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31,2017
(Rs in lakhs)

A. Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

(Loss)/Profit before tax (201.57) 425.07
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2,452.97 2,001.20
Lease equalisation reserve 492.02 502.99
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (99.04) (108.69)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 2,721.19 1,799.80
Advances written off - 1.38
Provision for gratuity 2.61 7.39
Provision for leave encashment 5.82 8.59
Excess provision/ credit balances written back (0.02) (38.10)
Provision for litigation 12.97 12.97
Provision for doubtful debts 3.03 10.30
Net (gain)/ loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (0.35) 0.60
Net (gain) on sale of current investments - (1.65)
Operating profit before working capital changes: 5,389.63 4,621.85
Movements in working capital:

(Increase) in trade receivables (1,141.50) (340.98)
(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advances and other current assets (25.04) 336.51
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (51.66) 6.82
Increase in liabilities and provisions 1,048.97 1,064.39
Cash Generated from Operations 5,220.40 5,688.59
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (146.39) (145.35)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 5,074.01 5,543.24
Cash flows used in investing activities

Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP, capital advances and capital creditors (17,768.72) (18,593.32)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 1.52 23.27
Acquisition of shares in subsidiaries - (885.62)
Proceeds from sale of current investment(net) (116.01) 1.65
Loans recovered from/(given to) related parties (including fair value changes) 0.00 57.48
Interest received 99.04 108.69
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (17.784.17) (19.287.85)
Cash flows from financing activities*

Proceeds from issuance of share capital - -
Proceeds from issuance of compulsory convertible debentures - 200.00
Proceeds from long term borrowings(Net) 15,700.90 15,404.91
Interest paid (2,721.19) (1,799.80)
Net Cash from financing activities (C) 12,979.71 13,805.11
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for (he year ended March 31, 2018

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lnkhs)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 269.55 60.50
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 550,89 490.39
Cash rad eash equivalents at the end of the year 820,44 550.89
Components of caah and cash equivalents
Cash oo Hand 18.80 10.83
Balances with Scheduled Banks in
- Current accounts 801.64 540,06
Total cagh and cush equivalents 820.44 550.89
* There are no non-cash changes arising from financing activities,
The accormpanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to44
As per our report of cven date
For Deloltte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fleur Hotels Private Limited
N - -~ 3
)"L\' “’“'J sl ) \ \?ﬂ:’.‘_
A\ 4P x = | AN
2 - 5
Vijay Agarwal = \MW "Fstanhli G. Keswanl Inder Pal Batra
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN-00002974
. P
Poojn Bakshi
Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Date : May 25, 2018 Daltc : May 25, 2018
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) is a
private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Asset No. 6,
Aerocity Hospitality District, New Delhi-110037.

The Company, its subsidiaries and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The
Group”) intend to carry out business of developing, owning, acquiring, renovating and
promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand name of Lemon Tree Hotel,
Lemon Tree Premier and Red Fox Hotel. ’

The consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on May

25,2018.
2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) The
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Effective April 1, 2016, the Group has adopted Indian Account Standards (Ind AS) and the
adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 ‘First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transition date. The transition was carried out
from Indian GAAP as prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 34).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company its
subsidiaries and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The Group”) as at 31
March 2018. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights

KIN
‘2‘}% \iffm f an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
;.‘f’ ( chartered it has power over an investee, including:

Bt Accounttt 71 o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
N2 <'\\/ e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

RN e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Q"‘)‘

@™
—

@

(b)

(©)

SKINg

=

¢
o
ered
Accountants | r—
) S

)

~

o

e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 in the consolidated financial
statements, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of such property plant and equipment.

Consolidation procedure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
account for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are
eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
liminated in full on consolidation.
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A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (including deemed acquisition/ deemed
disposal), without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
e Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
¢ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
e Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
23 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
cach business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’sidentifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economiic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

e Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind
AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

e Assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

o Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal
of the reacquired right.

ZKINa>. When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed
?‘5 —,VS TR . p q o
Q;?‘* s \f‘fu;;\_\fnr appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
t Chartereg | @cOnomic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
— | Accountanis '~ deparation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with Ind AS 18 Revenue.

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain
purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing
the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

?5‘((!

If' the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
Chane,ed \ eriod in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
A°°°“"1ﬂ”" .' ?01 which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
\‘ /modw:ll during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
> reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition

date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
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adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not
exceed one year from the acquisition date.

(b) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

o [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

(c) Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
INS™\, measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
\\U’\\ when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
AS::lnjt:t;ea \ﬁ?’;?tems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the

s /77 lehange in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
(A ~//loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
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(d) Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
‘measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External
valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects
external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after
discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to
use for each case.

%“SK'NS%\

Chartered \‘;\_‘]At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
fEccuiints | (S'Jiabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
~ //policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
~" valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documents.
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The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

+ @ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 29)
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 34)
* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 34)

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before
revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/Goods & Service Tax(GST) is not received by the Group on
its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banquets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT), Goods and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the
billed as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax /
VAT/GST.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost ,interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
ayments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
Chartered \ ™ here appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest

Accountants | I .if 1come is included in finance income in the income statement.
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Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.
Variable income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement.

® Taxes
Taxes comprises current income tax and deferred tax
Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

S="—"" Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
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which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales/ value added taxes/GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST paid,
except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Useful life considered
(SL.M)

Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Building 60 Years
Electrical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years

Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
Private Vehicles 8 Years

Computers 3 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

(h)  Intangible assets

SWN\? On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
= c" Antangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
Chartered \m_\w 1at carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset .
—- Accoumants l:“),
'nlannlblc assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
/ intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of

"-.



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

(i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance aproject, the amount
capitalised represents the actulborrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds areavailable out
of money borrowed specifically to financea project, the income generated from such
currentinvestments is deducted from the total capitalizedborrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance aproject form part of general borrowings, the amountcapitalised is calculated
using a weighted average ofrates applicable to relevant general borrowings of thecompany
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowingcosts is suspended and charged to profit and loss
duringthe extended periods when the active development onthe qualifying assets is
interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expectedlife of the financial liability or a shorter period, whereappropriate, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument.

() Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a leasé¢ is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

S lNS\\ For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2015, the Group has determined whether the
26 p p p
rrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of
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Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is
classified as a finance lease.All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease termunless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not
met.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Operating lease receipt are recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease termunless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the receipt from the lessee are not on that basis, or

(b) The receiptsfrom the lessee are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If receipts
from the lessee vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.

Chartered
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repaid expense and charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss on an equitable basis over the
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Conversion charges payable to local authorities on conversion of use of industrial plot for
hotel purposes, are recognised as prepaid expense and charged off to statement of profit and
loss on an equitable basis over the lease term.

(k) Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

1)) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
/’ KIN < S\ been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
7/ 05" =% Q" 2\ last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
(;.‘f’ o \m \asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have

6 Accountants | — |been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
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& ‘K\/ )/ / prior years. Such reversal is recogmsed in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
o ‘, /" carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(m) Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair
value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised in accordance with the requirements
for revenue recognition.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme.Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expenses off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,

excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return

on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),

are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to

retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
\reclass1ﬁed to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

ZoKig
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¢ \i/ / ¢ The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the respective trusts

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Group treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal
and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

(o) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
categories:



Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 9.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch”). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

o \Equity investments
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

® The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantty, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the

”‘“‘x\\ financial instrument
NE N\
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head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCL.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 14.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of a debt instrument held by the entity, it should
not be accounted for separately.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Group has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its
measurement, the Group does not include depreciation and amortization expense, interest

‘\..
\(p 1come, finance costs and tax expense.
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Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On
March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign
currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Group is evaluating the
requirements of Ind AS 21 and its effect on the financial statements.

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MICA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with
Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

« Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to
each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

« Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date
of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1,
2018.

The Group is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 115 and its effect on the financial
statements.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

4. Capital work-in-progress

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)

Hotel at Guragon Sector 60 (Lemon Tree)
Material - 4,125.57
Professional charges - 827.33
Borrowing cost - 368.10
Salary, Wages & Bonus - 150.78
Project staff expenses other then salary - 81.12
Rates and Taxes - 477.36
Others - 237.53

- 6,267.78
Less Capitalised during the year - 6,267.78
Hotel at Gurgaon Sector 60 (Red Fox)
Material - 1,931.95
Professional charges - 407.77
Borrowing cost - 119.83
Rates and Taxes - 393.90
Salary, Wages & Bonus - 124.99
Project staff expenses other then salary - 45.54
Others - 128.95

- 3,152.91
Less Capitalised during the year - 3.152.91
Hotel at City Center Pune
Material 7,096.25 4,200.43
Professional charges 2,095.81 1,667.34
Borrowing cost 1,985.50 1,695.21
Salary, wages & bonus 162.44 136.24
Project staff expenses other then salary 93.19 51.80
Travelling 12.68 9.34
Rates and taxes 1,670.68 575.29
Others 35.34 25.40

13,151.89 8.361.05

et @ \
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs 1n lakhs)
Hotel at Udaipur
Material 9,728.08 5,268.15
Professional charges 1,846.34 1,383.31
Borrowing cost 680.56 240.72
Salary, Wages & Bonus 168.64 85.47
Project staff expenses other then salary 49.35 28.14
Travelling 16.62 12.22
Rates and taxes 46.89 30.55
Others 0.26 0.26
12,536.74 7,048.82
Hotel at Kolkata
Material 2,768.79 1,293.55
Professional charges 928.63 776.29
Borrowing cost 204.11 34.10
Salary, Wages & Bonus 90.73 52.28
Project staff expenses other then salary 62.95 39.22
Travelling 5.33 420
Others 1.35 1.06
4,061.89 2,200.70
Hotel at MIAL Aerocity
Material 71.12 4.12
Professional charges 4,823.50 3,719.11
Lease rent 4,006.00 2,723.29
Salary, wages & bonus 23.93 597
Project staff expenses other then salary 8.52 4.14
Travelling 25.98 16.22
Rates and taxes 1,280.37 345.83
Others 31.87 24.49
10,271.29 6.843.17
Hotel at Bandhavgarh
Material 1,110.56 152.37
Professional charges 214.20 2.28
Salary, wages & bonus 20.04 8.46
Project staff expenses other than salary 0.11 0.06
Travelling 4.68 3.38
Rates and taxes 0.66 0.66
Others 6.63 2,48
1,356.88 169.69
Less Capitalised during the year (1,356.88) -
= 169.69
Hotel at Dehradun
Material 157.01 -
Project staff expenses other then salary 1.10 -
Travelling 0.82
Rates and Taxes 7.80 -
166.73 -
Total 40,188.54 24,623.43
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

5. Intangible Assets

Rs. In laklis

Particulars Software Goodwill on Total
Consolidation
Cost or valuation
As at April 1, 2016 59.39 8,658.97 8,718.35
Additions 58.14 673.42 731.56
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2017 117.52 9,332.39 9.,449.91
Additions (Also refer note 38) 13.47 - 13.47
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2018 130.99 9,332.39 9,463.38
Amortisation and impairment
As at April 1,2016 12.32 - 12.32
Amortisation 11.20 11.20
Disposals ’ - = -
As at March 31, 2017 23.52 - 23.52
Amortisation 21.92 - 21.92
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2018 45.44 - 45.44
Net Block
As at March 31, 2018 85.55 9.332.39 9,417.94
As at March 31,2017 94.00 9.332.39 9.426.39
As at April 1,2016 59.39 8.658.97 8,718.35
Net book value As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Intangible assets 9,417.94 9,426.39
Intangible assets under development (Software 36.31 -

implementation)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private.Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

6 Financial assets As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits at amortised cost 2,859.28 2,334.96
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 93.14 73.93
Fixed deposits under lien* 218.75 186.30

317117 2,595.19

* Fixed deposits under lien includes deposits lien marked with banks against guarantees issued in favour of
various Government departments.
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. Fleur Hotels Private Limited... . . . e
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

7.1  Non-current tax assets (net) As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 41541 317.82
415.41 317.82
72 Other non-current assets As at Asat
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs ‘Rs in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances 669.49 4,283.83
Balance with statutory/ government authorities 48.81 66.84
Prepaid expenses 107.91 . 8854
Unamortised portion of security deposits 16,441,68 17,951.02
Total 17,267.89 22.390.22

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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__Fleur Hotels Private Limited ..
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

8 Inventories As at Asat
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine) 78.74 32.56
Liquor and wine 59.20 69.92
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 116.22 100.02
Total 254.16 202.50

As at March 31, 2018: Rs. 5.48 lakhs, (March 31, 2017: Rs. 5.48 lakhs) was recognised as provision for inventories carried at net
realisable value.

Refer footnote to Note 14 for inventories pledged.

\ (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Flewr Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

9 Financial'assets

(i) Trade receivables
Trade receivables

Break-up for security details:

Secured, considered good
Secured, constdered doubiful
Linsecured, considered good
Doubttul

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Doubtful

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

2,173.67 |,033.20
2,173.67 1,035.20
2,173,67 1,035.20

18.41 18,53
2,192.08 1.053.73

18.41 |18.53

18.41 18,53
2,173.67 1,035.20

No trade or other regeivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor
any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a

member,

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
On current & cash credit accounts
Cash on hand

(iii) Investments

Investments at fair value through Profit & Loss
Unquoted mutual funds
4,756.947 (Previous year Nil) Units of Reliance Money Manager Fund

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

Current
Non-Current
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As At As At
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs
801.64 540,06
18.80 10,83
820,44 550.89
As At As At
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
116.01
116.01
116.01
116.01




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Tinaneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(iv) Other financial assets
Advances recoverable
- Employee Advance
- Others
- Others, considered doubtful

Provision for doubtfiil advances

Security deposits

Others
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

10 Other current assets

Accrued revenue

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid expenses

Unamortized portion of security deposits

Total

Chartered I\I"'II.".',
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As At As At
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

0.82 1.42

302,98 161.02

8.75 8.75

312,55 171.19
(8.75) (8.75)

303.80 162,44

14.73 15.70

14.73 15,70

4,04 4,00

322.57 182.14

As At As At
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

11.43 101.31

373.40 249.94

175.25 142.44

947,70 197.47
1,507.78 691.15
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11 Share capltnl
.
Authorlsed Share Capiial Equity shares
Mol shares R I lukihs
As at April 1, 2016 1.210,000,000 121,000
Tncrense/(decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31,2017 1,210,000,000 121,000
Increase/(decrense) during the year -
As at March 31, 2018 121000006 121,000

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Ra. L0 per share, Each holder of equity shares is enlitled to one voto
per share, In the event of liguidation of te company, the holders of equity shares will be entiiled lo receive remaininy f=stis of the

afler distrit of all p inl amounts, The distrib will be in proporilon to the number of equits sharcs held by the
shareholders,

Issucd equity capltal

Equily shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully pald Min, ol shiires Ha in Likibs

As at April 1, 2016 59,286,253 5,928.63
Issued during the year - -
As at Mareh 31, 2017 59,286,253 5,928.63
Tasued during (he year H -
As at March 31, 2018 59,106,253 591K,63
=
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the
Asal Asot
Mureh 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
Mo af shiares i M, of shitres e bkl
Equl(y shares of Rs. 1 cach fully pald up
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 34,374,498 5798% 34,374,498 57.98%
APG Strlegic Real Eslate Pool N.V. 24,911,755 42.02% 24911,755 42.02%
12 Other equily
Securliles Premium s in lukchy
Asat April 1, 2016 §0,422.08
Increase/(decrease) during Lhe year
Ag at March 31, 2017
Add: premium on igsu of shares
As at March 31,2018
Retalned Earnings R In Lok
As at April 1, 2016 (2,447.55)
Profit for the year 206.70
As al March 31,2017 (2,240.85)
Proflt for the year 2.85
As at March 31,2018 (2,238.00)
Compulsorily convertlble debentures Rs in lakhs
Asat Apri 1, 2016 2,131.11
Increase/(decrease) during Lhe year 148,23
As at March 31,2017 2,279.94
Increase/(decrease) during Lhe year -
As al March 31, 2018 2,279.94
Asat Agat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs In lakhs Rs in lakhs
Other reserves
Securities Premium 89,422.28 89,422.28
Relained Eamings (2,238.00) (2,240.85)
T lsoril: ible det 2,279.94 2,279.94
B, 464,32 F9,461,37
Securilles premlum: Securities premium comprises premium received on issue of shares.
Retained enrings: Retained eamings compriso balances of profit and loss at each vear end
Compulsory converilble Each Compulgoril, ibl is ible into one hundred equity shares of Tora Holels Private Limiled of Re oue each fully paid. The
Debentures are zero coupon and do nol carry any inleresl rate,
13  Non-conirolling Interest Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
I i falihs it5 i fokhs
Nomecanzlling inerest 1,020.06 1,020.06
/“_ —
= -
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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(i)

Financial Liabilities Asat As at
March 31, 2018 Maich 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Non-current borrowings

Term Loans
Indian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)
Axis Bank Limited (Refer note | below) 13,014.87 6,414.37
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 2 and 5 below) 10,490.93 5,133.52
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 3 and 4 below) 19,267.86 16,079.20
Vehicle loans (Refer note 6 below) 60.71 39.84
Total non-current borrowings 42,834.37 27,666 93

Current borrowings

Term Loans

Current maturity of long term loans

Axis Bank Limited (Refer note 1 below) 916.25 720.00
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 2 and 5 below) 582.42 495,92
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 3 and 4 below) 333.50 94.00
Vehicle loans (Refer note 6 below) 23.77 12.55
Total current borrowings 1,855.94 1.322.47
Less: Amount clubbed under “other current financial liabilities” {1,855.94) (1,322.47)

Net current borrowings - -

Term loans

1). Rupee term loan from Axis Bank Limited (sanction amount Rs 9,000 lakhs) was taken during financial year 2010-11 and
2014-15 and carries the interest rate @ base rate + 2,35%, Currently 9.50% (previous year 11.60%). The Loan is repayable in 40
quarterly instalments with first installment falling due after a period of 3 years from first disbursement. It is secured by way of
(a) A first pari passu charge on the Borrower's properties & assets, both present & future, pertaining to the Lemon Tree Hotel
project of the Company at Delhi Aerocity Hospitality District (Except Project Land)

(b) A first pari passu charge on Company's bank accounts and all revenues of the Company

(c) Right of substitution provided by DIAL under tripartite agreement with the Company and Axis bank as lender's agent.

(d) Pledge of 51% equity shares of the Company held by the Holding Company.

(e) Corporate guarantee of the Company

TL-III (sanction amount Rs. 7500 lakhs) was taken during the year 2017-18 and is repayable in 59 quarterly installments
commencing 6 months after first disbursement,

2), Rupee term loan from Kotak Mahindara Bank (sanction amount Rs 6,030 lakhs) carries current interest rate of 9,85%
(previous year 11.50%). The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable
fixed assets of the company, first and exclusive equitable charge on immoveable properties being land and building situated at
54B/55A Hosur Main road Electronic city Phase 1 Bangalore Kamnataka and Corporate guarantee of Fleur Hotels Pvt Ltd.. Loan
shall be repaid by way of 120 equal monthly installments starting from month following the month of first disbursement of loan
i e Necemher 2015

3). Rupee term loan from Yes Bank Limited (santion amount Rs 12,000 lakhs) was taken during financial year 2015-16 and

presently carries interest rate @ 6 month's MCLR + 0.90%, Currently 9.95% (previous year 9.50%). The loan is repayable in
scattered quarterly installment beginning from April 2017. Interest is payable monthly as and when due. It is secured by :

a) Exclusive charge on all immoveable fixed assets of Lemon tree hotels Premier, Hyderabad,

b) Exclusive charge on all moveable fixed assets and current assets both present and future of LTH, Hyderabad.

¢) Corporate guarantee of the Company

4). Rupee term loan from Yes Bank Limited (santion amount Rs 4,500 lakhs) was taken during financial year 2016-17 and
presently carries interest rate @ 6 month's MCLR + 1.15%, Currently 8.85% (Previous year 9.70%). The loan is repayable 44
structured quarterly installment after a moratorium period of 36 months from the date of first disbursement. Interest is payable
monthly as and when due, It is secured by :

a) Exclusive charge on all immoveable fixed assets, moveable fixed assets and current assets of Lemon tree Sector 60 Gurgaon,
and covention centre within Hotel premises of 20,000 sq.ft (appox.).

b} Corporate puarantee of the Company

5). Rupee term loan from Kotak Mahindara Bank (sanction amount Rs 6,000 lakhs) carries current interest rate of 8.85%
(previous year Nil), The loan is secured by:

a) first and exclusive charge on all existing and future current assets and moveable fixed assets of Red Fox Hotel at Sector 60,
Gurgaon.

b) Subservient charge on all existing and future current assets of the same hotel,

¢) Equitable mortgage by way of exclusive charge on the land and building of the hotel

Loan shall be repaid by way of 48 quarterly installments starting from 39th month following the month of first disbursement of
term loan,

6). Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of underlying motor vehicle acquired out of such loans. The loan is repaid on
agreed equal monthly installments



Fleur Hotels Private Limited . . )
Notes to C: lidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2018

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(ii) Other financial liabilities
Security deposits 454,75 403.86
454.75 403.86
15 Provisions As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for gratuity 32.63 27.90
Current 7.43 5.88
Non-current 25.20 22.02
Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for leave benefits 35.96 30,14
Current 35.96 30,14
Non-current - -
As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Provision for litigations (Refer note 32) 53.94 40.97
Current 53.94 40.97
Non-current - -
Total current 97.32 76.99
Total non-current 25.20 22.02

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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16 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Borrowings cost

Security deposits payable

Revaluation of land

Deferred tax liability

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in

the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes on payment

basis

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

MAT credit entitlement

Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss
Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave compensation

Non moving inventory

Security deposits

Others

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
663.30 1,902.03
1.38 2.14
(281.60)
377.64 401.78
760.72 2,305.95
10.66 5.08
(0.28) -
1,347.54 1,284.88
(733.99) 203.66
0.31 3.26
3.67 476
0.48
(386.61) 2.33
(17.83) 9.87
223.95 1,513.84
536.77 792.11

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31,

2018 and March 31, 2017:

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax rate

Tax at statutory income tax rate

Effect of incomes taxable at nil/lower rate

Effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ required to tax under
Income tax charge/ (credit) in respect of earlier year
Unrecognized tax assets (net)

Other adjustments

Net

As per statement of profit and loss

N
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March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(201.57) 425.07
25.75% - 30.90% 33.99%
(67.93) 144.48

10.64 (48.35)

70.10 (55.15)

(13.89) (31.92)

(102.94) 208.17

(102.13) i
(206.16) 217.24
(206.16) 217.24



Fleur [otels Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

17 Other Non-current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Reserve for lease equalisation 1,597.20 1,105.19
Unamortised portion of security deposits 2,402.24 2,543.55
3,999.44 3.648,74

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018

18 Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables
Trade Payables

-Other than Micro and small enterprises

(ii) Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings

Book overdraft

Other payables
-Payable for capital goods
-Sundry Deposits

Outstanding dues of other ereditors

19 Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Unamortised portion of security deposits
Statutory Dues

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2,914.08 1,865.27
2,914.08 1.865.27
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Rs'in lakhs Rs in lakhs
1,855.94 1,322.47
82,50 448.76
2,352.39 1,884.76
0.75 0.75
256.98 226.89
4,548,56 3.883.63
As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
343.70 200.85
141.31 141.31
269.09 452.83
754.10 794.99
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20 Revenue from operations

Revenue from operation

Sale of products nnd services

- Room rental

- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine)
- Liquor and wine

- Banguet rentols

- Telephone ani telex | - .

- Other Services (including service chargs income)

Other Operating Revenue
- Management fee

- Commissicn income
Revenue from operations

21 Other Income

Income from serve for India schéme

Profit on sale of fixed assets

License fees received

Rent received

Excess provision/ credit balances written back
Exchange difference (net)

Miscellaneous income

Total

22 Cost of food and beverages consumed

(a) Consumption of food & bevernges excluding liquor & wine

Inventory at the beginning of {he year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumed

(b) Consumption of liguor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less; Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of liquor and wine consumed

23 Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Gratuity expense

Leave compensation expenses

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Charterag | ‘:
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
R i Lkl R in lnkhs
13,607.98 8,977.58
3,578.57 3,039.22
589.68 508 92
33.0 96.80
8.98 6732
1,733.66 1,403.15
- 286.74
3.72 4.68
19,555,060 14,384 41
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
o 424
0.35 -
316.05 390.13
6,14 6.34
0.02 38.10
- 034
27.30 12.88
349.86 45&
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs In lakhs Rs in lakhs
32.56 3515
1,867.31 1,211 56
1,899.87 1,246.71
T84 J256
182113 1,214.15
69.92 64.02
194.55 188 09
264.47 252.11
50,20 69,92
20527 18219
2,026.41 1,396.34
Fot the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lekhs
2,959.57 2,195.89
127.78 84.20
10.62 8.20
8.2 1131
502.68 295.67
3,0049.44 2,595.27
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24 Other Expenses

for the year ended March 31, 2018

Consumption of stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others

License fee
Power and fuel

Linen & uniform washing and laundry expenses

Guest fransportation

Spa expenses

Subscription charges

Repair and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
Adverti and busi
Management fees

p

Commiission -other than sole selling agent

Security and cleaning expenses
Membership and subscriptions
Legal and professional fees
Advances writien off

Water and sewerage charges
Freight and cartage

Exchange difference (net)
Donations

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment

Provision for doubtful debts
Payment to auditor
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

For Statutory audit

For Tax audit

For Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

Details of CSR expenditure:

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the group during the year

(b) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2018:
i)  Construction/acquisition of any asset
ii)  On purposes other than (i) above

(c) Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2017:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
i) On purposes other than (i) above

*Company did not find any adequate opportunity for spending the balance amount

25 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets

Total
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For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
336.33 25402
623.65 403 97
2,096.34 1,223 42
195,36 169.43
553.58 33371
86.93 78.52
3749 4521
137.57 264.72
221.24 196,35
307.82 294.47
984.74 65408
381.17 300,88
36.46 28.03
214.95 20070
110.68 6763
40.13 66,68
78.25 64.02
580.75 470.70
931.08 651.48
505.59 235.10
293.91 15582
243 347
186.64 23799
- 138
4.70 393
0.94 039
0.06 -
4.68 8.60
- 060
3.03 10.30
33.00 4329
204.91 11896
9,194.41 6,587 85
23.00 2375
2,00 -
8.00 18.58
- 096
33.00 4330
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
20.54 21.18
Yet to be paid in cash* Total
4.30 - 430
Yet to be paid in cash* Total
8.60 - 860
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2,431.52 1,990 00
2145 1120
2.452.97 2,001 20
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26 Finance costs

[nterest

- on term loans from banks

- on vehicle loans

- on income tax

- on others

Bank charges (including commission on credit card collection)

Total

27 Finance income

Profit on sale of investment

Interest Income on :

-Bank Deposits

- Interest on income fax refund

-Others

Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

28 Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2,661.13 1.750 27
7.51 364
0,03 289
5255 4588
207.54 138 38
1,918.76 1,94 Dis
R

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
- 1.65
19.38 2054
4.90 3
79.66 88 16
1.01 S
104.95 11035

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period/year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period/year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by thie weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period/year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

The eamings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS are as follows:

(Loss)/Profit attributable to equity holders (for basic and diluted)

Weighted average number of equity Shares (for basic and diluted eamings per share)*

Basic and Diluted eamings per share

For the year ended
March 31, 201§

For the year ended
Minrch 31, 2017

4.58
59,286,253
0.01

207 83
59,286,253
0.35

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in share transactions during the year. There have been no other transactions
involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.
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29. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
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The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilitiesaffected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken certain land and land and building on long term lease basis. The lease
agreements generally have an escalation clause.These leases are generally non-cancellable. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the
lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life/ remaining economic life of the property
and the fair value of the asset, that it does not have all the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Further, the Group based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the respective agreements
decided that wherever the escalations (generally 15% every 3 years or 20% every 4 years) are aligned
to the average expected general inflation of the lease term period, operating lease payments are not
required to be provided on a straight-line basis over the lease term as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss and in other cases (including structured payment terms), operating lease payments are
expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term in the statement of profit and loss.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods. See Note 34 for further disclosures.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using other valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
se factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Taxes

Considering that nature of the Company’s operations and history of past tax losses, deferred tax
assets (including MAT credit) are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be generated in future against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, it is considered prudent to
recognize the deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities and the Company
has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs 8,48.50 lakhs and Rs 9,05.40 lakhs as of March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2017 respectively.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

30. Group information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries and Limited liability partnership listed
in the table below:

a) Subsidiaries/LLP under Direct Control

Principal Country of % of equity interest
S. No. | Name of the Company Activities Incorpoll"z tion | March March
31,2018 | 31,2017
1. | Celsia Hotels Private Limited Hotel India 100% 100%
Business
2. | Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Hotel 100% 100%
Limited Business India
3. | IORA Hotels Private Limited Hotel India 100% 100%
Business
4. | Ophrys Hotels Private Hotel 100% 100%
Limited Business India
5. | Hyacinth Hotels Private Hotel 100% 100%
Limited Business India
6. | Bandhav Resorts Private Hotel 100% 100%
Limited Business India
7. | Mezereon Hotels LLP Hotel 99.99% 99.99%
Business India

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

31. Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is govemed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement
age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal
number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.The Trust Fund has taken a
Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Group makes provision
of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the Projected
unit credit method.

Rs. in lakhs

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Benefit Liability
Gratuity plan 32.63 27.90
Total 32.63 27.90
Risk analysis

Group is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefits plans and management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Investment risk
The most of the Indian defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
Group does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Government of India bonds for Group’s Indian operations. If the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.
Longevity risk/life expectancy

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. Increases in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary growth risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Unquoted investments: E
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Discount rate:

Pension plan 7.30% 6.70%
Future salary increases:

Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan

Male 60 60
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2018 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018 2018 2018 2018
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit
obligation 143 1.53 1.55 1.48
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2017 2017 2017 2017
Assumptions Discount rate ) Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit i =l B
obligation 1.05 113 1.18 117

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs
Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1 11.00 7.63
2 9.43 6.52
3 8.00 6.12
4 6.91 5.24
5 5.76 4.38
Above 5 18.89 14.51
Total expected payments 59.99 44.39

The average duration of the defined benefit.plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 years (March 31,
2017: 5 years).

32. Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has taken hotel properties under operating lease agreements. These are generally cancellable and are
renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease for hotel properties are non-cancellable for a
period of twenty three to twenty nine years.

The Group has recognised the following expenses as rent in the statement of Profit & Loss towards minimum lease
payment.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017
Lease Rent on Hotel Properties 1,595.64 646.46
Total 1,595.64 646.46

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at March 31 are, as follows:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2018 2017

Minimum Lease Payments :

Not later than one year 1,723.75 1,574.08
Later than one year but not later than five years 7,922.40 6,910.98
Later than five years 57,956.95 53,676.88
Total 67,603.10 62,161.94

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2018 Rs. 13,950.14 lakhs

(March 31,2017 Rs. 14,175.49 lakhs)

¢. Contingent liabilities

(i) Legal claim contingency

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees

issued by company’s bankers 341.97 267.63
c. |Value Added Tax (VAT) g 43.50
d. |Service Tax 92.38 92.38
e. |Income Tax 16.40 -
f. [Property Tax 69.34 69.34

The Group’s pending litigations above pertains to proceedings pending with Income Tax, Sales/VAT tax and other
authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for

6_ rovisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
statements.

(ii) During the earlier years, the Ultimate Holding Company and one of the subsidiary company, Hyacinth Hotels
Private Limited (collectively known as “Companies”) had received a show cause notice dated April 25, 2014 from
Collector of Stamps, Delhi (‘Department’), wherein the department was of the view that prima facie the companies
has not paid stamp duty as per Indian Stamp Act, 1899 on right to use the land given by Delhi International Airport
(P) Ltd. (DIAL) under the Development Agreement dated May 25, 2009 (‘DA’). The Companies contested the
matter and the Department pursuant to the response received from all the developers of area where the Companies
project is located, and arguments thereon, passed a common order on July 14, 2014 (“Order”) and subsequently,
the Companies and its directors received show cause notice dated August 14, 2014 from the Department as to why
criminal prosecution for non- payment of requisite stamp duty should not be initiated against them. The Company
along with certain other developers had filed a writ petition before the Honorable High Court of Delhi (HC) and
the HC vide its order dated August 25, 2014 has granted ex- parte interim stay from all proceedings under the
Order including the said show cause notice dated August 14, 2014. The next date of hearing before the HC is
scheduled for October 11, 2018. The companies, based on advice from legal experts, is of the view that there is no
likelihood of any liability devolving on the Companies on this ground.

(iii) Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, one of the subsidiary company, has received a demand from South Delhi
Municipal Corporation (‘the Authority’) wherein the Authority has called upon the subsidiary company to pay an
amount of Rs. 68.20 lakhs (for the financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013-2014) towards annual value in
respect of the hotel property situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity. The Subsidiary Company filed a writ
petition in the high court against the said order. Pending adjudication, the High Court had given interim stay
directing the subsidiary company to deposit Rs 25 lakhs. The management based upon its assessment and expert’s
advice believes that any further liability against the aforesaid demand (including the demand for any subsequent
year) is improbable to crystallize.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

33. Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties

Holding company - Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies - Begonia Hotels Private Limited
- Nightingale Hotels Private Limited.

Key Management Personnel - Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani(Chairman & Managing

Director)

- Mr. Sachin Doshi(Director)(Upto August 10,2017)

- Mr.Niten Malhan(Director)

- Mr. Rattan Keswani(Director) _

- Mr. Gopal Sitaram Jiwarajka(Independent Director)

- Mr. Sanjeev Kaul Duggal(Independent Director)(Upto

April 1,2017)

- Mr. Dominic James Doran(Director)

- Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf (Director)

- Mr. Brian Lap Hei Hung ( Additional Director)(Wef
August 24, 2017)

-Mr. Paramartha Saikia( Independent Director)(wef
June 8, 2017)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by - Spank Management Services Private Limited
key management personnel or their relatives - Toucan Real Estates Private Limited
Enterprise in which Holding company has -Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

Significant Influence
Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the
year:

Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Inder Pal Batra
Company Secretary : Ms. Pooja Bakshi
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2017: Rs Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Group has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

34. Fair value measurement

a. Financial assets

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables B 2.173.67 ) 1,035.20
Investments 116.01 } ) )
SIBIGIDIE E 5 2,874.01 : 2.350.66
Other bank balances _ 21875 _ 186.30
Cash and Cash
Equivalents - 820.44 - 550.89
Interest accrued on
deposit with banks - 97.18 B 77.94
Loans ) )
Other amount
recoverable - 303.80 - 162.44
Total Financial
Assets 116.01 6,487.85 - 4,363.43
b. Financial liabilities
Rs. In lakhs
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost
Borrowings 42,834.37 - 28.989.41
Trade Payables 2,914.08 - 1,865.27
Other Financial
Liabilities E00S1E : 2,965.02
K . ¥
S| inancial i
Lgm's BOISLG 33,819.69
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

c. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Group categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on
the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2

Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included
within level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3
Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Group’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

March 31, 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial investments as FVTPL
Quoted Mutual Funds 116.01 i : 116.01

March 31, 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial investments as FVTPL
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
bank overdrafts, Interest accruéd on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and ‘other
current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their carrying values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

e The fair values of the investment in mutual funds have been estimated based on NAV of the
assets at each reporting date




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to support its
operations. The Group's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management is supported by a financial risk
committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Group. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the
Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as
below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
Group is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Group expects the variable rate to
decline, accordingly the Group is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Rs. In lakhs
March 31,
March 31, 201
2018 arch 31, 7
Variable rate borrowings 44,605.83 28,937.01
Fixed rate borrowings 84.48 52.40

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Effect on
Increase/decrease
in basis points profit
before tax

Rs. In lakhs

March 31,2018
INR 50 188.48
INR -50 | (188.48)
March 31, 2017
INR 50 104.58
INR -50 | (104.58)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of
number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with
the Group's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2018, March 2017 is the carrying amount as illustrated in
Note 9.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rs. in lakhs

Apeae March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Not due - '
0-60 days past due 1273.98 681.34
61-120 days past due 305.81 169.85
121-180 days past due 223.78 48.81
180-365 days past due 276.42 80.29
365-730 days past due 69.56 45.50
more than 730 days 24.12 9.41

Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. in lakhs
Pt March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Not due - -

0-60 days past due - 8.81
61-120 days past due - -
121-180 days past due - -
180-365 days past due - -

more than 365 days 18.41 9.72

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade
receivables(including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. In lakhs
March 31, March 31,

2018 2017
Provision at beginning 18.53 13.82
Addition during the year = 8.81
Reversal during the year - -
Utilised during the year 0.12 4.11
Provision at closing 18.41 18.53

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Loans and deposits (including provision for
expected credit loss)

March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Provision at beginning 8.75 8.75

Addition during the year - =

Reversal during the year = =

Md during the year = -

Pﬁy_@pn at closing 8.75 8.75
T

arterod | 1=




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with
respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety.of
sources of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. As at
March 31, 2018, the group had available Rs. 20,500 lakhs (March 31, 2017: Rs. 12, 500 lakhs) of
undrawn committed borrowing facilities.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Rs.in lakhs
L
On demand eian3 RitprLZ 1 to S years > § years Total
months months

Year ended B
March 31, 2018
Borrowings - 218.12 1,659.62 12,29%7.94 30,514.63 44,690.31
et oiiee 2,914.08 ; . . . 2,914.08
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities _3, 147.37 - = - - _ 3,147.37

6,061.45 218.12 1,659.62 12,297.94 30,514.63 50,751.76
Year ended
March 31,2017
Borrowings - 111.84 1,118.88 10,220.17 17,538.51 28,989.40
R 1,865.14 : : : - 1,865.14
payables
Uiy incneic) 2,965.01 g , : ; 2,965.01
Liabilities )

4,830.15 111.84 1,118.88 10,220.17 - 17,538.51 33,819.55
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

36. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the
Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less
cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Borrowings 44,690.31 28,989.41
Trade payables (Note 18) 2,914.08 1,865.27
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 820.44 550.89
Net debt 46,8395  30,303.78
Total capital 96,412.91 96,410.06
Capital and net debt 143,196.86 126,713.84
Gearing ratio 33% 24%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

37. Segment Reporting

The Group is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Group performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Group as a
single unit. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Group as per the requirements of Ind
AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about geographical areas

The Group has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Group as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

Information about major customers

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

38.

Business combination

During the previous year, on 13" May, 2016, one of the subsidiary Company, M/s. Fleur

Hotels Private Limited purchased 23,110 shares of Bandhav Resorts Private Limited,
constituting 100% stake, from its previous owners. On acquisition of Bandhav hotels, the
Group has recognized Rs. 673.42 lakhs being the excess of amount paid for the transfer
amounting to Rs. 834.04 lakhs and net assets taken over amounting to INR 160.62 lakhs
as Goodwill under Intangible assets.

The fair value of assets and liabilities of Bandhav Resorts Private Limited taken over as at the
date of business combination were as follows:

Fair value of assets and

Particulars liabilities

Property plant & equipment 522.90
Other Non-current assets 18.01
Other non-financial assets 0.72
Cash and short term deposits 2.69
Total assets (A) 544.32
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 364.86
Other non-financial liabilities 18.84
Total liabilities (B) 383.70
Net asset taken over (A-B) 160.62
Amount paid 834.04
Goodwill 673.42
Cash acquired on acquisition 2.69
Cash paid 834.04
Net cash on acquisition 831.35

39. During the earlier years, one of the subsidiary had entered into an Infrastructure development and
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services agreement with Delhi International Airport Limited to develop two hotels at Aero City,
New Delhi for an initial term of 27 years, extendable at the option of the subsidiary for an additional
period of 30 years provided DIAL gets the extension from Airport Authority of India. DIAL is
committed to take over the building at ‘Book values’, as defined in the aforesaid agreement in case
the agreement is not extended further.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

40. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs in lakhs

March 31, | March 31,
2018 2017

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining Nil Nil
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of] Nil Nil
section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of! Nil Nil
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the Nil 0.05
end of each accounting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable Nil Nil
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

41. The Group does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are
any material foreseeable losses.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

42. There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

43. Previous period’s figures in the financial statements, including the notes thereto, have been
reclassifted wherever required to confirm to the current period’s presentation/classification. These
are not material and do not affect the previously reported net profit or equity.

44. Amounts for year ended March 31, 2017 and as at March 31, 2017 were audited by previous
auditors — S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

0 %éw@_& él{;W

Patanjali G. Keswani Inder Pal Batra
Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Pooja Bakshi

Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2018
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